
 

 

 

Boston Borough Council 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire 
PE21 8QR 
Tel: Tel 01205 314226 
Fax: 
 

 
My ref: PE/KR/Planning 
 

Please ask for: Karen Rist, Democratic Services Officer (Direct number Tel 01205 314226) 
 
Monday, 31 January 2022 
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor  
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee 
 

on Tuesday, 8 February 2022 at 10.00 am 
 

in the Boston Guildhall 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Chairman:  Councillor Tom Ashton 
Vice Chair:  Councillor Alison Austin  
Councillors:  Peter Bedford, David Brown, Katie Chalmers, Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, 
Jonathan Noble, Frank Pickett, Paul Skinner, Yvonne Stevens, Peter Watson and Judy Welbourn 
 

 

 
Note(s) for Members of the Committee:  

In order to vote on a planning application committee Members must be present for the entire 
presentation and discussion on the item. 
 
When an official site visit is undertaken which forms part of the decision making at Committee, 
only Members who have attended the site visit and received full representation will be able to 
debate and decide the application. 
 
 

 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the committee meeting as observers 

except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items. 

 

This meeting may be subject to being recorded. 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AA  GG  EE  NN  DD  AA  
 

PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

 

A   APOLOGIES 
 
To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

 

B   MINUTES 
 
To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 

 

 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 

 

 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
To answer any written questions received from members of the public no 
later than 5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this 
meeting the deadline is 5 p.m. on Thursday 3rd February 2022 

 

 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

1   PLANNING APPLICATION B/21/0039 
 
Major - Approval of Reserved Matters 
Application of reserved matters (Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and 
Scale) for the construction of 75 dwellings (Phase 3) following outline 
approval B/17/0317 (Hybrid outline application for residential development 
(up to 200 dwellings) 
 
Land off Wyberton Low Road, Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7SF 
 
Mrs Rebecca Archer, Chestnut Homes Limited 

 

1 - 24 

2   ADOPTION OF LOCAL LIST 
 
A report by the Assistant Director - Planning 

 

25 - 38 

3   INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT 
 
A report by the Assistant Director - Planning 

 

39 - 54 

 

Note: A planning decision comes into effect only when the decision notice 
and associated documents are despatched by the Local Planning Authority 
and not when the Committee makes its decision. 

 



 

 

 
Notes:  
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 
It is implicit in these reports that the recommendations to and the consideration by Committee will 
take into account the Council’s obligations arising out of the Human Rights Act and the rights 
conferred by Articles 6,8,14 and Article 1 of the First Protocol of the European Convention on 
Human Rights (ECHR).  These are the rights to a fair hearing, respect for family and private life, 
the prohibition against discrimination and the peaceful enjoyment of possessions, respectively.  
The ECHR allows many to be overridden if there is a sufficiently compelling public interest. 
 
In simple terms the Act requires a person’s interest be balanced against the interests of the 
community.  This is something that is part of the planning system and that balancing is a significant 
part of the consideration of issues identified to Committee by officer reports.  Provided that those 
issues are taken into account, the Convention will be satisfied. 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, Democratic 
Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 8QR, Tel 01205 314226, e-mail: 
karen.rist@boston.gov.uk. 
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Karen Rist, Democratic 
Services Officer as soon as possible giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be 
attending the meeting as their substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions  
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, Braille or 
a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 314226 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building via 

the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point located in 

the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

 

 

PLANNING APPLICATION B/21/0039 

 

Planning Application: 

Application of reserved matters 
(Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale)  
for the construction of 75 dwellings (Phase 3)  

following outline approval B/17/0317  
(Hybrid outline application for residential development (up to 200 dwellings) 

 

 

Land off Wyberton Low Road, Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7SF 

Mrs Rebecca Archer, Chestnut Homes Limite 
Location: 

Land off Wyberton Low Road, Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7SF 

 

Applicant: 

Mrs Rebecca Archer, Chestnut Homes Limited 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 

P
age 2



 

 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Planning Committee – 8th February 2022 

 

 

Reference No: B/21/0039  
 
Expiry Date:  17-Jan-2022 
Extension of Time: TBC 
 
Application Type: Major - Approval of Reserved Matters 
Proposal:  Application of reserved matters (Appearance, Landscaping, Layout 

and Scale) for the construction of 75 dwellings (Phase 3) following 
outline approval B/17/0317 (Hybrid outline application for residential 
development (up to 200 dwellings) 

  
Site:   Land off Wyberton Low Road, Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7SF 
 
Applicant:  Mrs Rebecca Archer, Chestnut Homes Limited 
Agent:   Mr William Smith, Chestnut Homes Ltd 
 
Ward:           St. Thomas' Parish:Boston Town Area Committee, 

Wyberton Parish Council 
  

Case Officer:          Ian Carrington Third Party Reps: 8 
 
Recommendation: GRANT 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 3



 

 

1.0 Reason for Report 
 

1.1 The application was called to Committee by ward member Cllr. Mrs Austin for the 
following reasons: 

 
▪ I see that all the residents of Heron Way have raised objections, even though 

they have basically used identical letters. Their concern relates to a number of 
dwellings having vehicular access from Heron Way. 

▪ LCC has also raised concerns and this makes me unhappy about approving 
this under officer delegation. 

▪ My next concern is that the existing properties on Heron Way will be 
overlooked as the plans indicate that there will be houses immediately behind 
the bungalows and the site will be raised before construction of houses.  

▪ I see no mention of maintenance of the existing dykes.  
▪ Original outline application showed access into the development and no 

access for dwellings directly onto Heron Way 
 
2.0 Application Site and Proposal 
 
2.1 The application site consists of 2.57 hectares of arable land, part of a larger parcel 

of 7.9 hectares forming the Heron Park development of up to 200 dwellings. The 
site is on the South Eastern fringe of the built form of Boston and is bounded to the 
south by earlier phases of Heron Park and a drainage dyke, to the west by existing 
residential development on Wyberton Low Road and to the east by Heron Way. 
There is open land to the north, part arable part scrub. 
 

2.2 The topography is flat, and the site lies entirely within Flood Risk Zone 3 (FRZ3). 
 

2.3 Members will note that the site is adjacent to land, which, is presently at an 
advanced stage of construction, with a number of the units having been recently 
occupied. Development remains ongoing on some areas, including those granted 
by additional permissions as set out below. 
 

2.4 The application has been revised during its processing, in order to respond to 
concerns raised by Officers and consultees. 
 

2.5 Members will note that in effect this is the detailed elements of the scheme 
previously approved in outline. There have been some minor modifications to the 
illustrative masterplan. This established, amongst other things, the principle of 
dwellings adjacent to Heron Way and the properties in that area.  
 

2.6 The design and appearance of the proposed dwellings accords with that of earlier 
built phases of Heron Park. All the buildings will be two storey, comprising 71 
houses arranged as semi-detached or in short terraces of three units, plus four 
maisonettes. Materials are specified in the submission (three types of red or 
cream bricks and three types of grey or red roof tiles) and are considered 
appropriate. Principal access is provided through the main estate layout, with a 
small number of units accessed off Heron Way. Various footpaths and other 
connections are also provided for. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 4



 

 

3.0 Relevant History 
 
3.1 B/17/0317 - (Hybrid outline application for residential development (up to 200 

dwellings) and full application for Phase I (71 dwellings). Phase 1 under 
construction. 
 

3.2 B/18/0489 - reserved matters application for Phase II (32 dwellings). Approved and 
under construction. 

 
3.3 B/20/0513 - granted permission for 12 dwellings at Baptist Farm - this permission 

was independent of the Heron park consents but in effect incorporated additional 
land at the south east corner into the overall development. 
 

4.0 Relevant Policy 
 
4.1 South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 

 
▪ Policy 1 – Spatial Strategy  

▪ Policy 2 – Development Management  

▪ Policy 3 – Design of New Development  

▪ Policy 4 – Approach to Flood Risk  

▪ Policy 5 – Meeting Physical Infrastructure and Service Needs  

▪ Policy 6 – Developer Contributions  

▪ Policy 10 – Meeting Assessed Housing Needs  

▪ Policy 11 – Distribution of New Housing  

▪ Policy 17 – Providing a Mix of Housing  

▪ Policy 18 – Affordable Housing  

▪ Policy 28 - The Natural Environment  

▪ Policy 29 - The Historic Environment  

▪ Policy 30 – Pollution  

▪ Policy 31 – Climate Change and Renewable and Low Carbon Energy  

▪ Policy 32 – Community, Health and Well-being  

▪ Policy 33 - Delivering a more Sustainable Transport System  

▪ Policy 36 – Vehicle and Cycle Parking  

▪ Appendix 6 - Parking Standards 

▪ Appendix 7 - Local Plan implementation  
▪ Appendix 8 – Developer contributions for education  

▪ Appendix 9 - Developer contributions for health care facilities  
 
4.2 National Planning Policy Framework (2021 iteration) 
 
5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 As a result of publicity, 8 representations have been received from residents of 

Heron Way. 
 

5.2 The objections and comments can be summarised as follows: 
 

• Heron Way unsuitable for additional traffic 

• Plans fail to maintain 9m easement from drainage dykes 

• To be in keeping with local character all new properties should be 
bungalows/chalet bungalows 

Page 5



 

 

• Adverse impacts on privacy 

• Poor condition of Heron Way road surface 

• All additional parking should be to the rear 

• Plans fail to respect the ‘headland marker’ indicating the limit of farming activity 

• Existing privacy could be maintained by planting evergreens to the rear of 
existing properties 

 
6.0 Consultations 
 
6.1 Natural England – no objection 

 
6.2 BBC Environmental Health – no objections 
 
6.3 Environment Agency – no objection; seeks to secure details of finished floor levels 

and flood risk mitigation measures as per Flood Risk Assessment by condition 
 
6.4 BBC Service Manager - Affordable and Accessible Homes – no objection: ‘Given 

that the final phase of 22 dwellings is capable of meeting the remaining affordable 
housing requirement, if none are forthcoming on this phase, I am comfortable with 
the position set out by the applicants in the Design and Access statement provided 
that the provision of all the remaining affordable dwellings is enforceable on the 
final phase in the unlikely event it becomes necessary’. 

 
6.5 Lincolnshire County Council (Education) – ‘The County Council has no comments 

on this application as education mitigation and viability were considered at the 
outline stage’. 

 
6.6 Lincolnshire County Council (Highways/SUDS) – no objection regarding 

drainage/SUDs but requests clarification of ownership of a watercourse on the 
southern site boundary.  Regarding highway access on Heron Way LCC expresses 
concerns that carriageway is narrow, in poor condition and unlit without a footway 
or cycleway.  

 
6.7 Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board – no objection; comments regarding 

maintenance of receiving drains, Board assets and importance of not raising overall 
site levels. 

 
6.8 Wyberton Parish Council – no objection 
 
6.9 Western Power – no objection but requests developer ensures clearance from 

distribution lines passing through the site 
 

6.10 Heritage Lincolnshire (archaeology) – no comments  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

7.0 Planning Issues and Discussions 
 
7.1 The key planning issues in the determination of this application are: 

 
▪ Principle of the development 
▪ Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
▪ Impact on neighbour amenity 
▪ Access, parking and highway safety 
▪ Flood risk and drainage 
▪ Ecology 
▪ Affordable housing 

 
Principle of the development.  

 
7.2 The principle of the development was established by the outline consent B/17/0317. 

Whilst there have been changes to the development plan and to national guidance 
since that grant of permission, none undermine the outline decision and the 
principle of development remains sound. It should be noted that whilst the principle 
of development was granted, all matters were reserved for later consideration, 
hence this application. Matters relating to S106 including affordable housing, 
education etc. were covered within the S106 agreement attached to the outline, 
which this application and any subsequent pertaining to phase 4 would have to 
comply with.  
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area.  
 

7.3 SELLP Policy 2 states that proposals requiring planning permission for 
development will be permitted provided that sustainable development 
considerations are met. These include size, scale, layout, density and impact on 
the amenity, trees, character and appearance of the area and the relationship to 
existing development and land uses as well as the quality of its design and its 
orientation.  
 

7.4 SELLP Policy 3 states that all development proposals will create a sense of place 
by respecting the density, scale, visual closure, landmarks, views, massing of 
neighbouring buildings and the surrounding area. SELLP Policy 17 seeks to meet 
the long term housing needs of the borough by encouraging mixed, inclusive and 
sustainable communities. These Local Plan policies reflect overarching national 
guidance as set out in the NPPF in paragraph 130 and elsewhere. 

 
7.5 The design and appearance of the proposed dwellings accords with that of earlier 

built phases of Heron Park. All the buildings will be two storey, comprising 71 
houses arranged as semi-detached or in short terraces of three units, plus four 
maisonettes. Materials are specified in the submission (three types of red or cream 
bricks and three types of grey or red roof tiles) and are considered appropriate. 

 
7.6 The presence of a 132kv power line crossing the site on a north-south axis has 

strongly influenced the layout, with the western portion (beneath and west of the 
line) given over to a large area of public open space and an attenuation pond. A 
central green space lies in remaining section where swales will help maintain some 
openness in the character of the street scene.  

 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

7.7 There is an outward looking frontage onto Heron Way, but vehicular access to the 
site is primarily via the existing development with only those dwellings fronting 
Heron Way having highway access. These changes are discussed in detail within 
the highway section, although in design terms, there is no objection to this approach 
which generally reflects a typical street pattern and alignment. This modification 
(when compared to the illustrative masterplan at outline stage) is considered a 
logical improvement of the scheme. 
 

7.8 Although there have been some minor modifications, in general terms, the 
proposed layout follows the indicative masterplan established at the outline 
application stage, and this phase will integrate with earlier phases to form an overall 
development coherent in both layout and appearance.  
 

7.9 The comments of Heron Way residents that the proposal should feature bungalows 
to complement their own properties are noted, but the wider character of the area 
is one of a mix of dwelling types and the use of two storey dwellings in this part of 
Heron Park will reflect the earlier phases of that development and not be 
unacceptably dissonant with existing nearby housing. It is considered that the 
proposal will be in keeping with the distinctive character of the locality. 

 
Impact on neighbour amenity.  
 

7.10 All development is likely to have some level of impact on neighbours. In this case 
neighbours will have been accustomed to open agricultural land beyond their 
boundaries, and hence the change to residential use will be especially noticeable. 
However, the principle of a substantial amount of development, and therefore a 
significant level of change has been previously approved. The test in planning terms 
is not whether there is any change at all, but whether the impact on residential 
amenities is unacceptably harmful. 
 

7.11 Existing dwellings on the western side of the development will be subject to only 
minor amenity impact, with that side of the proposal consisting of open space. 
Separation to the south is also such that existing residents of Heron Park will benefit 
from good separation distances accentuated by the drainage dyke and associated 
landscaping forming the southern boundary of the application site. 

 
7.12 The impact on the existing dwellings on Heron Way has been carefully considered. 

The road is a cul de sac, with a row of bungalows and one house at its northern 
end. The proposed new houses would be directly to the rear (west) of the 
southernmost three bungalows and obliquely visible from the other dwellings. The 
bungalows have relatively deep rear gardens, and the separation distance between 
the rear elevations of these dwellings and the proposed new two storey houses to 
the west is between 25m and 28m dwelling-to-dwelling. Separation from the side 
elevation of the southernmost bungalow to the two storey maisonette building to 
the south west and the side elevation of the nearest proposed house fronting onto 
Heron Way would be c.25m. These measurements compare favourably with the 
separation distances between the proposed new dwellings themselves: for example 
the northernmost block of three dwellings fronting Heron Way is separated from its 
own rear neighbours by c.20m. 
 

7.13 The relationship between existing and new dwellings is sensitive, but in this case 
the separation distances are greater than those found in many urban situations and 
elsewhere in parts of the earlier phases of Heron Park. The fact that in this case 
the existing dwellings are mostly bungalows has been considered as have the 

Page 8



 

 

finished floor levels of the new houses arising from the requirements of flood 
prevention. However the separation distances are such that no unacceptably 
harmful amenity impacts through overlooking or other means are considered likely. 
The resultant relationships are considered to be comparable with other residential 
forms where back to back relationships occur, and thus, it is considered to be not 
an uncommon occurrence, and there are examples locally such as off Sir Isaac 
Newton Drive. 

 
7.14 In pro forma letters Heron Way residents have suggested a conifer planting scheme 

as a screen. From a planning perspective this is not considered necessary but 
residents are of course free to plant their own gardens as they see fit. 

 
Access, parking and highway safety.  

 
7.15 SELLP Policy 2 states that developments will be permitted providing that 

sustainable development considerations are met relating to access and vehicle 
generation levels. 
 

7.16 SELLP Policy 3 states that developments will be permitted where the provision of 
facilities for the storage of refuse/recycling bins, storage and/or parking of bicycles 
and layout of car parking is secured. Appendix 6 supports Policy 3 and sets out the 
standard for car parking in new developments. In this case flats up to three 
bedrooms should be provided with two parking spaces. Where it can be justified by 
the character and location of the site the standards may be relaxed. 

 
7.17 Other than for those dwellings fronting Heron Way highway access would be via 

the earlier phase of Heron Park leading onto Wyberton Low Road. There is good 
permeability within the proposal, with footways and shared footway/cycleway 
facilitating active movement. Parking provision meets requirements. Residents’ 
concerns about the poor state of the Heron Way road surface are noted, but that is 
a matter beyond the scope of this application for which the Highways Authority is 
responsible.  

 
7.18 Regarding the dwellings fronting Heron Way LCC Highways has raised concerns 

about the access of nine dwellings onto this highway rather than onto the internal 
roadways of Heron park. Officers have carefully considered the points raised by the 
County council.  

 
7.19 As context it is noted that the Transport Assessment and its supplements for the 

overall development did not raise concerns about Heron Way. It concluded that the 
impact of the development would be modest, and that at peak hours the total of 200 
new homes would be likely to generate approximately 1.5 additional vehicle 
movements per minute. The Assessment concluded that the roads in the vicinity 
were all capable of absorbing the additional flows without difficulty. 

 
7.20 Regarding Heron Way itself, it is noted that vehicular access for four dwellings was 

allowed under the Phase II permission and a further two dwellings under the 
associated Baptist Farm development. County Highways was consulted on both 
applications and objected to neither, and merely referring to Heron Way as a ‘lightly 
trafficked’ cul de sac in its comments on Baptist Farm and raising no issues with 
the size or condition of the highway.  
 
 

 

Page 9



 

 

7.21 In this case it is considered that the incremental traffic from the proposed dwellings 
fronting Heron Way will not represent a danger to road users. It is a modest increase 
in overall numbers, and whilst the road is indeed modest in size it is typical of many 
lanes in the area which carry far more traffic. As a cul-de-sac there will be no 
through traffic and therefore it is likely that traffic will be limited to that serving the 
existing and proposed dwellings. Heron Way is speed limited but its dimensions 
and form make speeding unlikely. As such it is an appropriate site for ‘shared space’ 
use where the non-segregated nature of the highway itself assists traffic calming 
and road safety – in such situations it is not uncommon for pedestrians to mix with 
vehicular traffic without issue. In many ways, the additional dwellings would be 
unlikely to change the existing character of the lane and its use. When the existing 
characteristics of the route are added to the equation (i.e. the number of dwellings 
already using it, its cul-de-sac nature, the open views along it and its width) it is 
considered that an objection to the scheme would not be sustainable in planning 
terms. The potential for conflict, or difficulty passing is low, and in any event would 
not be unsafe.  
 

7.22 As for the condition of the carriageway raised by LCC this is not a planning matter, 
but an issue for LCC itself to resolve with appropriate maintenance. There is nothing 
to prevent future improvement of the road surface or construction, should such 
improvements be required following discussion of technical matters such as surface 
water disposal between the developer and the County as Lead Local Flood 
Authority. 
 

7.23 In addition, it is noted that an option for active travel for these units exists in the 
form of the shared footway/cycleway leading into the development, and thence to 
the main highway and public transport access on Wyberton Low Road. Whilst there 
may be concerns from the highway authority in terms of construction of the road, it 
is re-iterated that this is not a planning matter per-se. The route is part of the 
adopted network and thus there are mechanisms to resolve this, should it become 
a particular issue for the County. 

 
7.24 Taking all these factors together it is considered the scheme is acceptable in 

respect of highway safety and parking provision subject to the use of appropriate 
conditions. 

 
Flood Risk and Drainage.  
 

7.25 The principle of the development having been already established at the outline 
stage, the sequential and exception tests do not apply in this case. The application 
is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Drainage Strategy covering 
surface and foul water. Surface water drainage would be via a SUDS system using 
swales, cellular storage areas and an existing drainage dyke and would direct water 
to tan attenuation pond on the western side of the site.  
 

7.26 The proposed system will allow the development to accommodate 1 in 100 year 
plus 40% climate change allowance (plus 6% urban creep) without flooding whilst 
restricting flows off site to 6 litres per second maximum. The proposal has been 
consulted to the Lead Local Flood Authority, the internal drainage board, the 
Environment Agency and Anglian Water and no objections have been received.  

 
7.27 In terms of maintenance the underground pipework, bedding and manholes will be 

adopted by Anglian Water under a Section 104 agreement with the top of the 
swales, the cellular attenuation storage and the pond being maintained by the 

Page 10



 

 

management company. The ownership of the dyke separating the present 
application site from the earlier phase is riparian. This water course is an important 
component of the surface water drainage plan for Heron park, and its future 
maintenance is a material planning matter. Significant lengths have already been 
culverted as part of the works to date, and all underground sections would be 
included in the assets offered for adoption by Anglian Water under the Section 104 
agreement. Any remaining open sections would be included in the assets to be 
maintained by the management company and the future maintenance of all 
drainage and open space assets will be secured by condition. 

 
7.28 Foul water drainage will connect to the previous phase of the development via a 

gravity connection and onward via the existing pumping station on the southern part 
of the site. The foul system will be adopted by Anglian Water through a Section 104 
agreement and that company would be responsible for future maintenance. 

 
7.29 Subject to the use of appropriate conditions to secure the drainage plan, the surface 

and foul water drainage schemes are considered to be appropriate, and the 
proposal will not increase the risk of flooding on or off the site. 

 
Ecology. 
 

7.30 The site is currently arable farmland with limited ecological value, although she site 
verges are of higher potential as are the adjacent drainage dykes. An ecological 
report accompanying the outline application was resubmitted as part of the present 
application - this makes particular reference to the potential for water voles. 
 

7.31 Commenting on the application the Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust accepts the 
conclusions of the report but notes that having been written in 2017 it is now older 
than best practice indicates. However the site itself (an arable field) has not 
changed since the ecological survey and elements on its boundary (such as the 
drainage dyke on the southern edge) have been significantly reduced as a habitat. 
The value of re-surveying is therefore not considered to add significantly in this 
case, and instead it is recommended that the details of the 2017 report are secured 
by condition and an additional general condition supporting the aims of biodiversity 
gain is added. The Trust also seeks information concerning the species to be used 
in planting up landscaping and open space areas, and it is also considered 
reasonable and necessary to secure this by condition in the interests of biodiversity. 
Subject to these measures it is considered that the scheme is capable of being 
implemented without causing harm to wildlife and in a manner which will mitigate 
impacts on biodiversity.  
 
Affordable Housing.  
 

7.32 A legal agreement to the outline planning permission secured 60% of the total of 
200 dwellings as affordable homes. At each phase an affordable housing figure 
was to be agreed by the Council, but the agreement made no mention of what this 
figure should be. In this case the applicant wishes all the units to be market housing. 
The Council’s  Service Manager - Affordable and Accessible Homes has 
commented that since the remaining number of dwellings to be built after this phase 
can accommodate the required number of affordable homes to meet the 60% 
figure, he has no objection this phase being entirely market housing. It is therefore 
accepted that there will be no affordable housing component in this phase. 
 

 

Page 11



 

 

8.0 Summary and Conclusion 
 
8.1 The principle of the development was established under the outline permission and 

remains sound.  
 

8.2 The proposal will add a further 75 dwellings to the Heron Park development. These 
will be in keeping with the appearance and character of the development as built 
so far, and will integrate with the character of the wider locality.    

 
8.3 The proposal will have a negligible impact on existing neighbours on Wyberton Low 

Road. Those on Heron Way will see a more substantial change, with what has 
previously been an outlook over farmland becoming one of suburban housing. 
However loss of view is not a material planning consideration, and the layout of the 
proposal and the separation distances between new and existing dwellings are 
such that no unacceptably harmful impacts on residential amenity through 
overlooking, massing, loss of light or other means are likely to arise. 

 
8.4 The development provides a permeable internal layout with provision for safe active 

movement as well as for vehicular access and parking with primary access via the 
estate roads of earlier phases. The proposed use of Heron Way for a number of the 
dwellings is considered to be consistent with previous approvals and not considered 
likely to represent a hazard to future occupants or other road users. 

 
8.5 Whilst the site is in an area of flood risk, the proposed means of surface and foul 

water drainage are adequate to ensure that the site is well drained and that the 
proposal will not create additional risk of flooding on or off the site. 

 
8.6 Whilst this phase will not include an affordable housing element, this will not impede 

the overall Heron Park scheme meeting its legal requirement for affordable housing. 
 
8.7 The outline permission established the general scale and layout of the proposal and 

this submission for Phase III accords with that outline planning permission and its 
various provisions governing the phases of the development. It is in keeping with 
relevant policies of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan and will provide a 
valuable addition to the housing stock of the Borough in an appropriate location.  
 

9.0 Recommendation 
 

9.1 It is recommended that Committee approves the application subject to conditions. 
 
9.2 Members will of course note that a number of matters are already dealt with by way 

of conditions attached to the outline permission, given this application is for the 
detail, and that the two approvals form a single permission, it is not necessary to 
re-impose conditions where they are already in place. Equally, the Council is 
restricted on those matters to which conditions can be imposed because of the 
earlier grant of permission. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall take place in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
 
▪ SD041 Rev A Standard Wall Details received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ SD040 Standard Fencing Details received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ Planning Block J - 913-V1-01 Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 

December 2021 
▪ MA11364 Drainage Strategy Summary received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ MA10678-DS-R01 Surface Water and Foul Drainage Strategy  Dated August 2017 

received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ House Type Schedule Heron Park Phase 3 Dec 21 received by the LPA on 9 

December 2021 
▪ HWB3/09 Rev K Site Layout received by the LPA on 7 January 2022 
▪ HWB3/02 Location Plan received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 950-V1-01 Rev A Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 927-V1-01 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 925-V1-01 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 920-V1 TF 02 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 920-V1 (3 Block)- 02 Rev A Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 920-V1 (3 Block)- 01 Rev A Floor Plans received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 913-V1 (3 Block)- 02 Rev A Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 913-V1 (3 Block)- 01 Floor Plans received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 913- V1 TF 02 Rev C Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2022 
▪ 912-V1 TF 01 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 912-V1 (3 Block)- 02 Rev A Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 912-V1 (3 Block)- 01 Rev A Floor Plans received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 909-V1 Rev D Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 29 January 2021 
▪ 300 Rev B Site Section received by the LPA on 18 Oct 2021 
▪ 16-225-01 Topographic Map received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 105-V1 - 01 Rev A - Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 

2021 
▪ 104-V1-01 Rev A - Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 

2021 
▪ 104-V1 (3 Block) 02 – Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 2021 
▪ 104-V1 (3 Block) 01 -  Floor Plans received by the LPA on 9 December 2021 
▪ 103-V1-01 Rev A - Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 2021 
▪ 103-V1 (3 Block) 01 Rev A - Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 

December 2021 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with 
document MA10678-DS-R01 Surface Water and Foul Drainage Strategy Dated August 
2017 received on 18 Oct 2021, document MA11364 Drainage Strategy Summary received 
on 18 October 2021, the Flood Risk Assessment dated November 2017 and Amendment 

Page 13



 

 

to Flood Risk Assessment dated march 2021 both received by the LPA on 18 October 
2021. 
 
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants 
in accordance with Policies 2, 3 and 4 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-
2036) and paragraph 167 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 
 
3. The water consumption of each dwelling hereby permitted should not exceed the 
requirement of 110 litres per person per day (as set out as the optional requirement in Part 
G of the Building Regulations 2010 and the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-
2036). The person carrying out the work must inform the Building Control Body that this 
duty applies. A notice confirming the requirement for the water consumption has been met 
shall be submitted to the Building Control Body and Local Planning Authority, no later than 
five days after the completion of each individual dwelling.  
 
Reason: To protect the quality and quantity of water resources available to the district. 
This condition is imposed in accordance with Policy 31 of the South East Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2011-2036) 
 
4.  Prior to the commencement of development above slab level of any dwelling, final 
details of measures that aim to reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon 
energy (including measures such as facilities for EV car charging) and details relating to 
the timing of their implementation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved measures.  
 
Reason: To help reduce pollution and promote renewable and low carbon energy in new 
development schemes and to accord with Policies 2, 3, 30 and 31 of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and to accord with the intentions of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
5. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 
recommendations of the ‘Ecological Appraisal and Water Vole Report Report’ forming part 
of the application. 
 
Reason: In the interests of wildlife and biodiversity and to accord with Policy 28 of the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) 
 
6. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, prior to any works above the 
level of the damp proof course, a landscaping and biodiversity plan incorporating the 
principles set out in approved drawing no. HWB 83 09 Rev K Site Layout received by the 
LPA on 7 January 2022 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This shall include full details of the species to be planted (grasses as well as 
trees and shrubs) and details of bird and bat nesting sites and other ecology measures, 
and a timetable for the implementation of those works. 
 
The development shall then be implemented in accordance with the agreed details. 
 
Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with Policies 2, 3 and 28 of the South 
East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036). 
 
 

Page 14



 

 

7. The development shall proceed using the materials detailed in the document ‘Facing 
Brick & Roof Tile proposals for Phase 3 Heron Way, Boston’ dated January 2021 and 
received by the LPA on 18 October 2021. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the architectural and visual integrity of the development and of 
the character of the oolcaity and to accord with Policies 2 and 3 of the South East 
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021) 
 
8. If during redevelopment contamination not previously considered is identified, then the 
Local Planning Authority shall be notified immediately and no further work shall be carried 
out until a method statement detailing a scheme for dealing with the suspect contamination 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.   
 
Reason: To ensure adequate and appropriate remediation of the site in accordance with 
paragraphs 183 and 184 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
9. Prior to the commencement of any works other than site clearance a Construction 
Management Plan and Method Statement shall submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The Plan and Statement shall indicate measures to mitigate 
the adverse impacts of vehicle movements on the neighbouring highways and to manage 
the drainage of the site during the construction stage of the proposed development. The 
Construction Management Plan and Method Statement shall include; 
 
▪ the phasing of the development to include access construction; 
▪ the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
▪ the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
▪ the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
▪ wheel washing facilities and measure to control noise, dirt and dust during 

construction; 
▪ the routes of construction traffic to and from the site including routes for the delivery 

of fill material and; 
▪ strategy stating how surface water run off on and from the development will be 

managed during construction and protection measures for any sustainable 
drainage features. This should include drawing(s) showing how the drainage 
systems (permanent or temporary) connect to an outfall (temporary or permanent) 
during construction; 

▪ details of complaint management and resolution procedures 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be undertaken in accordance with the agreed 
details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the safety and free passage of those using the neighbouring 
road network, in the interests of the amenity of local residents and to ensure that the 
development hereby permitted is adequately drained without creating or increasing flood 
risk to land or property adjacent to, or downstream of, the permitted development during 
construction. This condition is imposed in accordance with Policies 2, 3 and 4 of the South 
East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) and paragraph 130 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (2021). 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 

10. Construction of the development hereby approved and deliveries to and from the site 
must only be carried out between the hours of 07:00-18:00 Monday to Friday, 08:00 – 
13:00 Saturday and must not be carried out at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public 
Holidays. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of local residents. This condition is imposed in 
accordance with paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
11. Prior to any works above the level of the damp proof course details of the proposed 
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the proposed streets within the 
development shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.   
 
The streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management 
and maintenance details until such time as an agreement has been entered into under 
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 regarding streets to be adopted by the Highways 
Authority or a private management and maintenance company has been established which 
shall be responsible for any other streets within the development or shared private drives. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of the public and users of the 
site and to accord with policies 2, 3 and 33 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-
2036) and paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
12. Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling on site a management plan (including 
management responsibilities, maintenance schedules and any proposals for future 
adoption by a statutory authority) for the areas of publicly accessible open space and any 
outdoor play areas, any streets, shared drives or footways not to be adopted by the 
Highways Authority and all elements of the Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
management of these areas shall be carried out in accordance with the details so 
approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of local residents. This condition is imposed in 
accordance with Policies 2, 3 and 4 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (2011-2036) 
and paragraphs 130, 167 and 169 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 
 

INFORMATIVE NOTES TO APPLICANT 
 
1. All roads within the development hereby permitted must be constructed to a satisfactory 
engineering standard. Those roads that are to be put forward for adoption as public 
highways must be constructed in accordance with the Lincolnshire County Council 
Development Road Specification that is current at the time of construction and the 
developer will be required to enter into a legal agreement with the Highway Authority under 
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. Those roads that are not to be voluntarily put forward 
for adoption as public highways, may be subject to action by the Highway Authority under 
Section 219 (the Advance Payments code) of the Highways Act 1980. For guidance please 
refer to https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
2. Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 
01522 782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works 
which will be required within the public highway in association with the development 
permitted under this Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the 
coordination and timings of these works. For further guidance please visit our website via 
the following links: 

Page 16

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Traffic Management - https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/traffic-management 
 
Licences and Permits - https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/licences-permits 
 
3. Development should be commenced within 2 years from the date of this approval, in 
accordance with condition 7 imposed on the outline permission B/17/0317. Additionally 
attention is drawn to the need to comply with the conditions imposed on the outline in so 
far as they are relevant and not superseded by conditions attached to and forming part of 
this approval of reserved matters. 

Page 17

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/traffic-management
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/licences-permits


This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2022-23 TO 2026-27 APPENDIX 1
SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER

2022/2023
ESTIMATE £

2023/2024
ESTIMATE £

2024/2025
ESTIMATE £

2025/2026
ESTIMATE £

2026/2027
ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION
Housing and Communities 853,120 726,870 728,990 753,380 763,790
Heritage 92,670 88,850 64,510 64,600 53,930
Town Centre 899,280 926,750 953,700 982,150 985,330
Environmental 4,370,590 4,445,210 4,554,140 4,701,960 4,771,420
Finance and Commerical 1,192,330 1,018,830 1,065,840 1,115,280 958,720
Leader 2,511,470 2,543,310 2,606,410 2,656,560 2,605,660
Economic Development & Planning 1,598,610 1,644,620 1,594,000 1,630,090 1,562,910
BTAC - Included in Town Centre 0 0 0 0 0
Efficiencies Required (281,559) (2,779,524) (2,855,315) (2,987,708) (2,612,873)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 11,236,511 8,614,916 8,712,275 8,916,312 9,088,887

Drainage Board Precepts 2,174,800 2,218,300 2,262,700 2,307,900 2,354,100
Parish Council Precepts 473,000 478,000 483,000 488,000 493,000

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 13,884,311 11,311,216 11,457,975 11,712,212 11,935,987
Appropriations
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 1,888,000 1,176,000 194,000 100,000 100,000
Interest on borrowing 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640
Repayment of loan principle / MRP 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Capital Charges contra entry (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640)
Return on Cash Investments (50,700) (69,500) (87,600) 0 (110,700) (115,300)
Return on Property Funds (909,000) (923,000) (938,000) 0 (952,000) (952,000)
Contributions To / (From) Reserves (5,277,852) (844,671) 235,180 328,306 326,960

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,876,759 8,992,045 9,203,555 9,419,818 9,637,647

FINANCING
Retained Business Rates 7,332,980 7,479,640 7,629,233 7,781,818 7,937,454
Tariff (5,140,710) (5,455,980) (5,565,100) (5,676,400) (5,789,928)
RSG 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894
Levy to Pool (177,070) (180,610) (184,220) (187,900) (191,658)
NNDR Surplus / (Deficit) (2,912,500) 0 0 0 0
NNDR Renewables 208,285 208,285 212,000 216,000 219,000
New Homes Bonus 697,400 0 0 0 0
Special Area Expense 739,660 761,890 784,490 808,370 831,590
Parish Council Precepts 473,000 478,000 483,000 488,000 493,000
Specific Grants 2,178,620 1,169,460 1,169,460 1,169,460 1,169,460
Council Tax surplus 86,654 0 0 0 0
Council Tax Precept 4,067,546 4,208,466 4,351,798 4,497,576 4,645,835

FUNDING 7,876,759 8,992,045 9,203,555 9,419,818 9,637,647

NET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0

09/02/2022 12:27
Z:\COMMITTEE SERVICES\Scrutiny\2 O&S Corporate and Community\2021-22\(7) 17th February 2022\(1b) Copy of Appendix 1 - Summary

by Portfolio 2022-23 Summary by PFH Apx 1
Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



B/21/0039 

Additional Information Report  

This report sets out additional information in relation to planning applications for consideration 

at the Planning Committee on 8th February 2022 which was received after the Agenda was 

published. 

 

B/21/0039 

Land off Wyberton Low Road, Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7SF 

Application of reserved matters (Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale) for the 

construction of 75 dwellings (Phase 3) following outline approval B/17/0317 (Hybrid outline 

application for residential development (up to 200 dwellings) 

Additional submissions: 

1. Revised site layout plan;  

2. A plan indicating the ownership of drainage assets; 

3. Final response from Lincolnshire County Council Highways/SUDS.; 

4. Revised list of plans for approval – linked to the recommended conditions. 

------------------------------------------ 

1.0 Revised site layout plan: 

Members’ attention is drawn to a further version of the site layout, drawing no. HWB3/09 Rev 

L, which was received after the preparation of the main report. 

The revision makes a number of alterations, including some which seek to address concerns 

raised about the highway access. The amendments as stated on the drawing are as follows:  

‘Potential passing place added along Heron Way, entrances to driveways to plots along 

Heron Way splayed, red line boundary amended to suit title, plots 110-112 amended 

to type 103 & repositioned to suit red line amendments, plots 130-131 amended to 

type 104-V1 & repositioned to reduce overlooking to existing properties, additional 

trees also added along existing Heron Way boundary & potential re-grading of Heron 

Way added. Surrounding properties named/numbered’. 

The passing place is offered by the applicant to help assuage concerns about traffic 

movements on Heron Way, and should be read in conjunction with the revised dwelling 

entrances to the immediate north which have been splayed to allow further passing 

opportunities. All of these measures are in the public highway and maintenance would be a 

County matter. The amendments have been reviewed by officers with LCC Highways, and the 

County Council has no objection. However at this stage it is recommended that the final 

selection of measures is delegated to officers so that further discussions may take place on 

what is most appropriate and an additional condition to secure this is recommended. Members 

may be reassured that either through a passing place, splayed entrances or a combination of 

the two measures will be included which will ease the passage of vehicles on Heron Way. 

An indication of a likely condition is expressed below: 
 

13. Prior to any works above slab level, details of improvements to the highway of 
Heron Way shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall proceed in strict accordance with the details so 
approved. 

Page 21



B/21/0039 

 
Reason: in the interests of residential amenity, convenience and safety in accordance 
with Policy 3 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036 and National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021. 

 

The drawing also refers to potential ‘regrading’ of Heron Way a further offer from the applicant 

regarding this length of road. This matter has also been discussed by officers with LCC 

Highways. Again, the recommendation to members is to give officers permission to deal in 

respect of this matter to further assess what may be required and optimal solutions which 

would be secured by condition. As the main committee report makes clear, the condition of 

the existing road surface is not a planning matter. However it is acknowledged that installation 

of services may have significant impacts, and it is noted that the Highways Authority has 

available statutory powers regarding making good. Therefore it is more likely than not that 

construction / grading works to the highway would be necessary. 

The revised layout also repositions the dwellings on plots 130 and 131 and changes the house 

type of this pair of semis. The effect is to increase the distance between the southernmost 

existing bungalow on Heron Way and these units from c.25m to c.30m, and the reorientation 

will also reduce overlooking of the proposed new neighbour to the north. As the main report 

indicates, the amenity impacts in the previous layout were not unacceptable. However the 

revision does make a modest improvement with regard to both existing and proposed 

neighbours and is supported by officers. 

Other amendments in the plan are minor and/or technical and have no bearing on the 

recommendation. They do not warrant re-advertisement or necessitate further consultation. 

Overall, Officers are supportive of the amendments which are desirable rather than required. 

These changes do aid in addressing comments contained in the report, and thus, Officer’s 

advise that they should be afforded positive weight within the determination. 

 

2.0 A plan indicating the ownership of drainage assets: 

Members attention is drawn to submitted drawing HWB3/17 Drainage Ownership Plan.  

Paragraph 7.27 of the main report makes clear that ownership and future maintenance 

arrangements will be secured for all drainage assets. The submitted plans provides updated 

background information and members will note that a condition is recommended to secure 

these arrangements either by adoption by Anglian Water or by incorporation in the site 

management plan. 

This does not amend the recommendation presented. 

 

3.0 Final response from Lincolnshire County Council Highways/SUDS: 

Members attention is drawn to the final comment of the Highways Authority, which is 

summarised as follows: 

LCC does not object to the development, but reiterates its preference for dwellings on 

the east side of the scheme to access the internal roadways rather than Heron Way.  

The LCC position is noted, and this matter is addressed in the main report. The LCC alternative 

was carefully considered from its first submission, but the Council must determine the case 

Page 22



B/21/0039 

before it rather than alternatives, and for the reasons set out in the main report the 

recommendation is to approve.  

Members should note that were the scheme to be refused, there are essentially two limbs to 

any highways grounds for refusal. Firstly, that a development would have a ‘severe’ adverse 

impact on the capacity of the network and secondly that it would represent a danger in terms 

of highway safety. Neither of these applies in this case, and therefore whilst it would prefer an 

alternative scheme the Highways Authority has not formally objected. The matter of using 

Heron Way has arguments on both sides, but in assessing the application before the 

Committee officers are clear that the planning balance is clear and in favour of approval. 

The final LCC comments include a request for consideration of the inclusion of a footpath from 

the western side of Phase III southward to the estate road. Whilst this would be desirable, for 

land ownership reasons it cannot currently be included as part of this application or imposed 

as a condition. 

This does not amend the recommendation presented. 

 

4.0 Revised list of plans for approval – linked to the recommended conditions. 

Members will note the following updated list of plans which would become ‘approved’ should 

the recommendation be carried. This results in consequential changes from the report as 

published. 

Amended list of plans for approval (proposed Condition 1 in the main report refers) 

 
▪ MA11364 Drainage Strategy Summary received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ MA10678-DS-R01 Surface Water and Foul Drainage Strategy  Dated August 2017 

received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ HWB3/17 Drainage Ownership Plan received by the LPA on 28 January 2022 
▪ HWB3/09 Rev L Site Layout received by the LPA on 28 January 2022 
▪ HWB3/02 Location Plan received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 16-225-01 Topographic Map received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 103-V1-01 Rev A - Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 2021 
▪ 104-V1-01 Rev A - Floor Plans and Elevationsreceived by the LPA on 9 December 

2021 
▪ 105-V1 - 01 Rev A - Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 

2021 
▪ 909-V1 Rev D Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 29 January 2021 
▪ 912-V1 TF 01 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 913- V1 TF 02 Rev C Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 920-V1 TF 02 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 

2021 
▪ 925-V1-01 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 927-V1-01 Rev B Floor Plans & Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 103-V1 (3 Block) 01 Rev A - Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 

December 2021 
▪ 104-V1 (3 Block) 01 -  Floor Plans received by the LPA on 9 December 2021 
▪ 104-V1 (3 Block) 02 – Elevations received by the LPA on 9 December 2021 
▪ 912-V1 (3 Block)- 01 Rev A Floor Plans received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 912-V1 (3 Block)- 02 Rev A Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 

Page 23



B/21/0039 

▪ Planning Block J - 913-V1-01 Floor Plans and Elevations received by the LPA on 9 
December 2021 

▪ 920-V1 (3 Block)- 01 Rev A Floor Plans received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ 920-V1 (3 Block)- 02 Rev A Elevations received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ SD041 Rev A Standard Wall Details received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ SD040 Standard Fencing Details received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 
▪ Housetype schedule received by the LPA on 7 February 2022 
▪ Facing Brick and Roof Tile Proposals received by the LPA on 18 October 2021 

 

 
Concluding remarks: 

The recommendation for this item remains unchanged, with conditional approval 

recommended. Officers request that in the event of the recommendation being carried, 

members grant Officers delegation to finalise the necessary conditions, including any 

consequential amendments arising compared to those as published. 

------------------------------------------ 

 

Page 24



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 

DATE: 18th January 2022 

SUBJECT: Adoption of Local List  

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

No 

Portfolio Holder for Planning - Cllr Nigel Welton 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Matt Bentley (Conservation Officer) & Emilie Wales – Historic 

Environment Officer (ELDC) 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

On 30th January 2021, Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities announced 
Lincolnshire (LCC as lead Authority) was one of 22 counties due to receive £70k to encourage 
the production of a local heritage list. Work began to deliver the project in April 2021. Since 
then, a project officer has been appointed, baseline data collected, a webpage and social media 
campaign launched and a public access platform produced and went live in 2021. The platform 
will be available to the public to enable residents to nominate local heritage assets of value to 
them, but will also allow streamlined sorting (using criteria) and digital storage of the data 
collected. Guidance and training will be provided.  
 
The next steps are for all 9 Local Authorities to adopt the criteria, which will become part of the 

shared platform and used to inform a consistent approach to identifying and assessing 

nominations. The Criteria have been adopted in East Lindsey, and South Holland District Council 

and currently going through the adoption process in other Local Authority Areas. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (2021) sets out in paragraph 192 that Local planning 

authorities should maintain or have access to a historic environment record and that this should 

contain up-to-date evidence about the historic environment in their area. The Local List will 

form part of the Historic Environment Record for Lincolnshire. It is therefore considered that the 

production and adoption of the Local List is a non-executive function relating to planning.  

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 2



The proposed listing criteria have already been scrutinised by specialist officers from all 9 

authorities involved and follows the latest Historic England (HEAN7) guidance.  

In the Council’s constitution, the Officer Scheme of Delegation (section 6.2 and 6.3) identifies 

that the Assistant Director for Planning has the responsibility for non-executive functions 

including heritage asset management, and proposing buildings for listing, making of 

conservation areas etc. Therefore the Council already has the relevant structures in place for it 

to adopt a Local List (and commence that process), consider future additions to the list, and 

make amendments to the process including the criteria in future as may be necessary. 

This report has been brought forward to enable the Planning Committee to endorse the move 

to adopt a local list, and the implications moving forward.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

This report asks the Planning Committee to: 

1. Support the implementation of a Local List based on the aforementioned project and 

acknowledge that in future, buildings may be brought forward for Local Listing and that 

such designations will be material to planning decision making.  

2. Note that the council intends to adopt the criteria found in Appendix A;  

3. Note the existence of existing delegations to enable the Council to manage the Local List 

and its implications.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

▪ The criteria provided is in line with Historic England (HEAN7) guidance and has been pre-

agreed by specialist historic environment officers from all 9 Local Authorities areas 

involved. It is important that one criteria is used across Lincolnshire as the data collected 

needs to be consistent, for assimilation into the Historic Environment Record (HER) but 

also for ease of use by members of the public who may wish to survey areas for potential 

local list entries, across different Local Authority boundaries.  

▪ The local list campaign is a national project funded by Department for Levelling Up, 

Housing & Communities. The timeframe provided for project delivery is April 2021 – 

March 2022. Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities expect the project to 

lead to the adoption of local lists, and thus agreeing to set out and simplify the process 

of adoption will show intent and give reassurance that this will take place after the end 

of the current funded project timeline. 

▪ Adoption of local lists are encouraged in local and national planning policy/guidance, as a 

method of ensuring due consideration is paid to non-designated heritage assets through 

the planning process. It also de-risks development for applicants who are aware of the 

assets value prior to application, thus can allow for this in advance of submission, rather 

than it being sprung on them during consultation. 

▪ The adoption of a local list is not directly being considered as part of this report but the 

adoption of the criteria which will be carried forward to support the adoption of a local 

list. It gives it more weight when used in scrutinising proposed entries and can then be 

used by the public and council in any appeals for/against inclusion. 

 
Page 26



OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Not to endorse the adoption of the criteria in Appendix A – this will lead to inconsistencies 

across the nine Local Authorities in the Lincolnshire partnership and within the list overall, giving 

it significantly less value and weight in the future. It may make it difficult to formally adopt the 

list if no consistent, overarching methodology can be demonstrated. 

Make changes to the criteria before adoption – there is a strong chance that any changes at this 

stage would result in losing the opportunity to benefit from the Department for Levelling Up, 

Housing & Communities funding which has provided the platform to co-ordinate data collection. 

A process, which will need to be repeated, if different or amended criteria is agreed at a later 

stage. The loss of momentum will lead to Boston Borough being omitted from the project. The 

loss of funding will render the project unviable in Boston Borough.  

 

REPORT 

1.0 Background Info 

1.1 On 30th January 2021, Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities announced 

Lincolnshire was one of 22 counties due to receive up to £70k to encourage the production of a local 

heritage list. The county, which includes 10 Local Authorities, has until February 2022 to deliver the 

scheme.  

 
1.2 The funding is being spent on a new post, hosted by Heritage Lincolnshire, a heritage charity 
working across the historic county who already have a great network of volunteers. The project 
officer has already developed a methodology and approach to the local listing project, engaging with 
local people and groups over the county to develop the criteria which will be used to help 
communities nominate historic buildings, monuments, sites and landscapes, of value to them.  
 
1.3 The campaign will also allow all of the information gathered to be held in one place, the county 
Historic Environment Records (HER) which will enable efficient data collection and publication. This 
will include an in-built verification system which means entries will be checked against the pre-
determined criteria before being uploaded onto the HER. 
 
1.4 Enriching the HER is a benefit in itself, resulting in a greater understanding of Lincolnshire’s rich 
heritage and share this knowledge with the public. In planning terms, once a building has been 
identified as a heritage asset, it can then be considered against heritage planning policies. Buildings, 
structures, monuments, sites, places, areas or landscapes do not have to be included on a list to be 
considered as a heritage asset but, being part of the a list makes them easier to identify. Inclusion 
on a local list may also help owners to understand what might be expected of them upon submission 
of future planning applications. 
 
1.5 Local lists can also be used in other ways. Some Local Authorities may choose to use the list as 
evidence to target future investment, many may formally adopt the list as part of their local plan 
(this is recommended to add weight), and others may wish to tailor additional development 
management tools such as Article 4 Directions to protect them. These options are not being 
considered as part of this report but are potential outcomes of having a better understanding of the 
area’s heritage assets.   
 
 
 
 Page 27



2.0 What is a local heritage list? 
2.1 Broadly speaking, a local heritage list is a list of locally important buildings or monuments or 
places, identified at a local level, which provides a degree of protection through the planning system. 
 
2.2 Through the planning system if planning permission is required for development, local planning 
authorities must refer to national and local policy relating to heritage assets. The SELLP policy 29 
requires proposals that affect heritage assets to be considered against a variety of criteria. The 
definition of heritage assets provided in that policy specifically references the Historic Environment 
Record as a source for identifying such assets. This underpins the importance of ensuring that local 
heritage is properly recorded and this evidence being made available.  
 
3.0 How does local listing differ from national listing? 
3.1 The statutory, List of Building of Special Architectural or Historic Interest is what we refer to as a 
‘listed building’. These are buildings of special historical or architectural interest (Grade I, II*, or II) 
are thereby said to be of national or even international importance and which are designated by the 
Secretary of State for the Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport upon the advice of Historic 
England. The measures for listing are set out in legislation and are subject to specific controls, thus 
‘protected’ from unauthorised alterations through the process of listed building consent. In planning 
terms, listed buildings are ‘designated heritage assets’. 

 
3.2 A ‘local list’, or ‘local heritage list’, is produced by local authorities, town or parish councils, or 
neighbourhood planning bodies and have no legal protection. In planning terms, locally listed 
buildings are regarded as ‘non-designated heritage assets’. 
 
4.0 Staffing 
4.1 Lincolnshire County Council and Heritage Lincolnshire appointed a Project Officer to lead on the 
delivery of the Lincolnshire Local Listing project on 19th April 2021. The staff member is employed 
by Heritage Lincolnshire, to ensure no bias towards any individual authority. 
 
4.2 Additional staffing resource is provided through a Community Engagement Officer within 
Heritage Lincolnshire, and “in‐kind” contribution from Lincolnshire County Council, Boston Borough 
Council, East Lindsey District Council (Historic Environment Officer) and West Lindsey District Council 
staff who sit on a Steering Group for the Project. 
 
5.0 Project Website and Exegesis Platform 
5.1 Exegesis (the company who provide the Historic Environment database for Lincolnshire), are 
developing a project website through which professionals and members of the public can engage 
with the project.  The website contains the Local Listing nomination platform (paper based resources 
have also been created for those unable or unwilling to go online), information about Local Listing 
including the assessment criteria (Appendix A), project blog, forum for volunteers and signposting to 
further information/useful resources via Historic England, Lincolnshire County Council and other 
partner Local Planning Authorities. https://local-heritage-list.org.uk/lincolnshire  
 
5.2 A working group has been established of Historic Environment Record Officer’s covering the 
County Council and Unitary Authorities to work together to determine the best way to utilise data 
and information gathered as part of the project within the database. 
 
5.3 Exegesis have developed an add-on to the website that will enable data gathered as part of the 
project to be downloaded and incorporated into existing Geographical Information Systems (GIS) to 
increase data held by Local or County Authorities. 
 
 

Page 28

https://local-heritage-list.org.uk/lincolnshire


 
 
 
6.0 Community Engagement, Events & Social Media 
6.1 Progress has already been made to engage communities and local groups to take part in the 
project. This has been a combination of direct approach by the project staff, approaches by local 
groups and through introductions made by heritage professionals. A Community Engagement and 
Activity Plan has been developed by Heritage Lincolnshire staff to aid with the public engagement 
side of the project. 
 
6.2 There are currently on‐going projects being developed across the county with local heritage and 
history groups consulted as well as Parish Councils in the District. Heritage Lincolnshire Project Staff, 
will look to organise meetings on-site with groups wishing to take part to help facilitate the creation 
of Local Lists across Boston Borough using their existing network and foothold in towns such as 
Boston and Kirton, where they have a property in the recently re-opened Old Kings Head. 
 
6.3 Discussions with the Lincolnshire Community Volunteer Service covering East Lindsey, South 
Holland and Boston; and Voluntary Centre Services covering Lincoln, North Kesteven and West 
Lindsey are underway to offer a volunteer role of `Local List Surveyor` to encourage a broader 
demographic of people to engage with the project, in particularly a younger audience. Through these 
organisations the volunteer offering will be available locally but also on national volunteering 
platforms. 
 
6.4 A social media presence has been established for the project on Facebook (692 individual page 
likes and 710-page followers), Instagram (172 followers) and on Twitter (68 followers). These figures 
were taken 18th January 2022 and subject to change. Social Media is used to raise awareness about 
the project and engage with the public. Posts are primarily of non‐designated heritage assets 
photographed by staff, or of events relating to the project, or others taking place within the historic 
environment sphere in Lincolnshire. 
 
6.5 The first, introduction to the project event took place and Zoom on the 30th July attended by 
thirty‐four participants. Future events are being planned to provide learning opportunities including 
identification of and surveying of heritage assets and research skills. We recently held an event to 
upskill volunteers in reading archaeology which had 43 attendees. 
 
7.0 Selection Criteria to be adopted 
7.1 An initial draft of Criteria was based on Historic England Advice Note 7 (HEAN7) and National 
Selection Criteria but raised queries in relation to archaeology and how it was reflected within the 
Criteria. After a review, this was simplified and have been supplemented by the creation of General 
Criteria and character statements for each Local Authority area, as well as basic information about 
the different asset types to aid understanding for people who may not have prior knowledge of the 
historic environment. 
 
7.2 The use of this provides consistency with the current assessment of heritage assets within Local 
Planning Authorities and a significance‐based approach to assessment. Furthermore, these can 
easily be applied to any heritage asset regardless of type. 
 
7.3 Based upon early feedback from discussions with community groups, a need has arisen for better 
describing terms within the assessment Criteria, and how these can be identified by people with no 
prior heritage knowledge or understanding. As such within the assessment Criteria, the Historic 
England descriptions utilised in HEAN7 will be expanded or modified to meet this need. See Appendix 
B. 

Page 29



 
7.4 The Criteria has been developed by project staff, based upon online research of existing adopted 
Local Listing criteria. The purpose of it is to provide some overarching principles that a candidate site 
should meet as well as the assessment criteria. Criteria can be found in Appendix A.  
 
7.5 It is envisaged that no asset will meet all criteria and it will be the decision of the Local Planning 
Authority to decide to what extent a candidate site must meet the criteria when considering which 
assets to be included on a Local List of Heritage Assets – to be considered at a later date not part of 
this report.  
 
8.0 Delegated Powers 
8.1 The existing Officer Scheme of Delegation (Section 6.2 and 6.3) allows for the Assistant Director 
for Planning to make decisions over the inclusion or rejection of a candidate site for Local Listing. 
As such this report is not seeking changes to this structure. The report is seeking endorsement of 
the existing powers in conjunction with the adoption of the Selection Criteria as set out in 
Appendix A. In enacting these powers when required, the Assistant Director for Planning will be 
informed by the Authorities in-house heritage provision to ensure the decision is made with 
appropriate expertise and justification in line with the Selection Criteria.   
 
9.0 Conclusion 
9.1 It is recommended that the criteria be endorsed to avoid any unnecessary delay in the local list 
project, and that the Council looks to move forward as part of the Local List project. In addition, to 
note that there are sufficient delegations existing as set out in the above report to provide a clear 
and efficient route to, utilise the data collected through the local list campaign to be adopted as a 
local list, and bring forward properties for local listing. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A 
 
In kind contribution from Matthew Bentley – Historic Conservation Advisor to Boston Borough 
Council in relation to time on the project steering group, report writing and role in the 
authorities proposed Local Listing structure. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

No new implications as the powers required for Local Listing in Boston Borough are already in 

place through the Officer Scheme of Delegation. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

The Platform will be publically accessible to all online. For those who are unable to use the 

online platform alternative methods will be available.  

 Page 30



OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

The information collected through the platform, which will be informed by the criteria which is being 

agreed has the following terms and conditions. The platform is hosted by Exegesis who provided a similar 

platform hosted by LCC: 

1. When you submit information to the Local Heritage List Project you agree that: 
 

a. The information and any associated content (such as photos, files etc.) is yours, or you have the 
permission of the copyright owner to agree to this usage. If you are submitting associated content 
(such as sales brochures, information from public websites, or publications) that is not yours, or you 
do not have permission to use, please ensure that the source of the information is clear, so we can 
make a decision on whether to include or refer to it. 
 
b.The information and content you submit can be made publicly available for wider use through the 
Historic Environment Record (HER) in its normal business and may be used for commercial and non-
commercial data searches. 
 
2. To avoid duplication, please do not submit candidate records to this website that have already 
been nominated by someone else. You can add extra information, photographs, or comments to 
another person’s nomination by using the ‘Comment’ tool or by emailing the project team. 
 
3. Do not submit information or comments that are defamatory, offensive, vexatious, unlawful, or 
infringe anyone else’s rights (including intellectual and privacy rights). Do not include information 
with a view to commercial or personal gain. 
 
4. If you repeatedly attempt to submit information or comments in breach of these Terms and 
Conditions or if you repeatedly breach these Terms and Conditions, we will suspend your access to 
this website. Any decision as to whether you have persistently breached the requirements of these 
Terms will be at our discretion. 
 
5. If you nominate a site that could, in our opinion, be vulnerable to damage or theft if the 
information is made publicly available, the record will be flagged as ‘sensitive’ and will not be made 
publicly available. 
 
6. Any contact details you submit by Registering on this site will be held securely by us and will only 
be used to contact you if there is a query about your information. Your contact details will not be 
passed on to any third parties without your permission. 
 
7. The name you register with will be stored as part of the record. 

A link to the Data Protection information for the platform can be found here:  

https://local-heritage-list.org.uk/lincolnshire/Privacy/Index  

 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation of the criteria has been with Historic England appointed by MHCLG to run the Local List 

Campaign, and of the Greater Lincolnshire Local Authorities, via their specialist historic environment 

officers.  

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A DRAFT Selection Criteria 

Page 31

https://local-heritage-list.org.uk/lincolnshire/Privacy/Index


APPENDIX B DRAFT Selection Criteria Guidance  

 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used in 

the production of this report 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Matthew Bentley, Historic Conservation Advisor, 

Matt.Bentley@boston.gov.uk,  

Signed off by: Mike Gildersleeves, Assistant Director for Planning, 

Mike.Gildersleeves@boston.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder: Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder - 

Economic Development and Planning 

nigel.welton@boston.gov.uk , Tom Ashton,  

Chairman of the Planning Committee and Deputy 

Mayor tom.ashton@boston.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 32

mailto:Matt.Bentley@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Mike.Gildersleeves@boston.gov.uk
mailto:nigel.welton@boston.gov.uk
mailto:tom.ashton@boston.gov.uk


Local Listing – Assessment Criteria – Draft 

General Criteria 

1. A candidate heritage asset should have some degree of permanence. It should not be easily 

removable for example street furniture fixed to the ground; artwork affixed to a building etc. 

2. A candidate heritage asset should be of demonstrable local importance, positively 

contribute to the character of the local area and be worthy of preservation for the benefit of 

future generations.  

3. A candidate heritage asset should be of greater significance than the general historic 

environment they form a part of.  

4. A candidate heritage asset should be definable in its extent or area. This is clearer for areas, 

buildings, landscapes, and structures. For sites of archaeological interest, a site should be 

readable either as earthworks, or as legible cropmarks on a recent aerial photograph. 

5. The condition of an asset will not preclude an asset from nomination for Local Listing. 

Assessment Criteria 

Asset type (Not a Criterion but included as closely related): A heritage asset can come from several 

broad categories, though the list is not exhaustive. 

Buildings: A building is a built feature with walls and a roof i.e., a cottage, house, school, mill, pillbox, 

barn, shop, water tower etc.   

Structures: An above ground feature that does not have both walls and a roof i.e., pump, well, wall, 

commemorative monument, sculpture, ruin, standing stone, ha-ha etc. 

Sites: Below ground remains, earthwork or other feature likely to be of archaeological interest i.e., 

deserted medieval village, Roman Villa site, prehistoric barrow or a wreck or crash site. 

Areas & Landscapes: Above or below ground features, could be naturally formed, or modified by 

human intervention, or a combination of both. They may have non-physical associations such as 

areas known historically to a particular tradition, event, industry, skill, person etc. Examples of areas 

and landscapes include parks, gardens, townscapes, village greens, common land, airfields, water 

landscapes such as canals etc. 

Other: Anything that is not covered by the above definitions can still be put forward, however should 

meet General Criteria 4 in that it should be definable in its extent or area; additionally, should meet 

General Criteria 1 and 2. 

Age: The Age of a heritage asset can be a factor in the significance of a Local Heritage Asset. Age can 

be linked with Rarity as generally the older something is, the rarer it is. There is no fixed cut-off point 

being applied to candidate sites, however the more modern it is, then more of the other criteria it 

should be demonstrated to meet during the nomination stage. For example Modern (Post-1945) 

assets will have to be of particularly unique and outstanding design or associated with a significant 

event or development to warrant consideration. 

For heritage assets of multiple-phases, if possible a date for the commencement of each phase 

should be identified where possible to do so. If not possible the phase associated with an asset's key 

phase of development should be identified as a minimum. 

 

 

Page 33



Rarity: Rarity can apply to all types of heritage asset. Rarity relates to an assets age, type, 

construction, design or through association with historical events, people etc and as such links 

closely with other criteria. 

Rarity of a heritage asset should be assessed against its context against the local character of the 

area it is found, the county, wider East Midlands area and possibly nationally. 

What is considered rare in one area, may be different to another. 

Architectural and Artistic Interest: Architectural interest includes both the design, or style of a 

heritage asset and the level of intactness of that design. The condition of a heritage asset will not 

preclude it from having Architectural Interest unless it has been altered beyond the point of it being 

recognisable as a heritage asset. 

The factors that contribute to architectural interest include: architectural style, building materials, 
methods of craft and construction, decoration and composition. 

Architectural Interest is also derived from the Intactness of these factors and the overall legibility of 
the design of that heritage asset. This is more applicable to buildings, structures, and landscapes 
than it is to sites of archaeological interest. Intactness can be represented through: original features 
such as windows/doors/roof covering; planting etc. 

Artistic interest derives from the way in which people experience and react to the asset, its aesthetic 
value and its contribution to the area in which it is found. 

Group Value:  Heritage assets that have or share a clear, visual, aesthetic or historic relationship 

with other heritage assets, or other man-made and natural features.  

Where Group Value can be demonstrated then the constituent heritage assets within the group 

should be considered as part of the nomination, as long as the individual elements can be 

demonstrated to meet other criteria for inclusion on the Local List of Heritage Assets. 

Archaeological Interest: Archaeological Interest is the evidence a site may yield about past human 

activity, experience, interaction and use of, and with the landscape. This activity and interaction may 

relate to settlement, agriculture, industry, religious practice, transport, conflict, learning, commerce, 

law and governance.  

This Archaeological Interest is generally reflected in the landscape as potential for buried 

remains, cropmarks (readable on recent aerial imagery), earthworks, or a combination of these.  

Archaeological Interest can also be found in the structure of buildings, and the composition of man-

made and natural landscapes. 

Key factors for the consideration of sites of Archaeological Interest are the legibility and survival of 

any above ground evidence (including Crop Marks); existence of supporting archival information, 

existing knowledge of the site and the significance of the Archaeological Interest are outlined above 

against the local, regional and national context. 

Historic Interest: Historic Interest is an association of a heritage asset with a notable individual, 

event, development in industry or agriculture etc. at a local, regional, national or international level 

that contributes to the overall significance of the asset. 

Page 34



Social and communal interest: Linked intrinsically to Historic Interest, Social and Communal Interest 

is any special meaning that is derived from the collective experience of a heritage asset. This can 

relate to local and cultural identity, social interaction or collective memories of a place and the 

people or events associated with it. 

Landmark Status: An asset that positively contributes to its setting due to its visual prominence 

or striking aesthetic value within the historic environment is said to be of Landmark Value. This value 

could be the intended result of development within the historic environment by man, or the 

unintended consequence of nature. 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Selection Criteria Guidance For Website 

Age: 

Where interpreting the age of a candidate you should consider: 

▪ The historic fabric, does this help to suggest a date, through use of period specific features 

such as windows / doors etc. 

▪ Using historic maps, trade directories or other documentary evidence, however if none exist 

then the historic fabric can be analysed to help estimate its age. 

Rarity: 

When interpreting the rarity of a candidate, you should consider: 

▪ The amount of examples of that asset type in the local area  

▪ Whether it is a rare example of a local practice, tradition, method of construction etc  

▪ The rarity of the candidate can also be interpreted through its integrity, if multiple examples 

exist, those that are less unaltered will be rarer than those that have seen change over time 

▪ Is the candidate an example of something that was once prevalent but is now not found 

within the historic environment. 

Architectural & Artistic Interest: 

Architectural Interest applies more to buildings & structures. Artistic Interest applies more to areas 
& landscapes, buildings, ruins & structures and also to the interrelationship between all of these 
asset types. 

When assessing Buildings for their heritage significance through the legibility of its design you could 
consider the following questions: 

▪ What is the pattern of fenestration? Is it original, or has it been altered through movement, 
enlargement, or reduction? 

▪ Are any doors in their original placement, or have they been moved? 
▪ Are the windows and doors original, history or modern replacements? What style and 

materials are these features? 
▪ Is the original construction material visible, if so what is it? If not, what is visible? 
▪ What is the roof covering material? Is this original, historic or modern? 

When assessing Areas & Landscapes for their heritage significance through their design and 
formation you could consider the following questions: 

▪ Are elements of planting readable in the landscape? This could be the pattern of planting 
but also age of planting, in particularly of trees which have greater longevity than seasonal 
planting of flowers. 

▪ Are there notable views and vistas? These may be internal within the landscape but also 
outside of its boundary towards other assets that the landscape may have group value with. 

▪ Are there any notable features such as ponds, lakes, ha-has, mounds, terracing, avenues 
etc? 

Page 37



Group Value: 

The following points could be considered when assessing a site for Group Value: 

▪ If multiple assets exist, or are there possibly more which are no longer extant? 

▪ You should be able to describe the extent of the grouping – stating whether it is a close, or 

scattered grouping etc. For example farm buildings may be close knit, whereas lodges may 

be some distance from their primary building. 

▪ Do all assets that form part of a group have individual significance, if so, this should be 

briefly outlined if not nominating all assets within the group. 

▪ Does any documentary evidence support or corroborate the group value? i.e. Maps, Estate 

Surveys, Accounts Books etc. 

Archaeological Interest: 

The following questions will help guide your thinking in interrogating and interpreting 

the Archaeological Interest and significance of a heritage asset.  

▪ What is the legibility of any earthworks, cropmarks, settlement patterns or other feature of 

archaeological interest? Has it been disturbed or altered over time? 

▪ What is the likely level of preservation of below ground evidence? 

▪ Is there any archival or documentary evidence to support suppositions about use of the site, 

above ground evidence or potential for buried remains? 

Historic Interest: 

The following points should be considered when assessing a site’s historic interest: 

▪ Is there a relationship with an important figure or event? 

▪ Is there a relationship between the asset and the history and development of the county of 

Lincolnshire, or England? This could relate to culture, politics, agriculture, industry, 

commerce, law & order etc 

Landmark Status:  

The following points should be considered when assessing a site for Landmark Status or Value: 

▪ Does the asset have a strong, positive visual presence within the area?  

▪ Are there notable views of the site, either from far away, or up close? 

▪ Are notable views of the site intended, or unintended? 

Social / Communal Interest: 

The following points should be considered when assessing a site for Social / Communal Interest. 

▪ Does the asset evoke strong feelings in the collective memory? 

▪ Can any communal feeling be defined? Does it relate to the site and its design/ composition, 

or does it related to an association with a person, event etc? 

▪ Is the Social / Communal Interest recent, or has there been communal interest throughout 

the sites history? 

▪ Does the asset contribute to the character of the area, or to local identity? 

 

Page 38



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Planning Committee 

DATE: 8 February 2022 

SUBJECT: Infrastructure Funding Statement 

KEY DECISION: 

  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:                     

N/A 

 

Councillor Nigel Welton 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

Elaine Henton, Planning Policy & Section 106 Officer 

 

 

SUMMARY 

This report provides a summary of the Council’s second Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS), 

which has been produced in accordance with the introduction of the Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL) Regulations 2019.  It also provides a wider update on activities relating to S106 

agreements. 

The IFS provides details of planning obligations entered into within 2020/21, following the 

adoption of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan, and also details the payments received for 

historic agreements, where triggers for obligations have been met, S106 monies currently held 

by the Council and any spend of S106 monies made within that year. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee are asked to note the Infrastructure Funding Statement.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To inform elected members of the reason for the production and publication of the IFS. 

 

 

 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 3



OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Not to provide the report. This has been discounted as the statement is already publicly 

available as a result of the need to publish it and present the results to the Department for 

Levelling Up, Homes and Communities (DLUHC). 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2019 introduced in September 2019 

required that all Local Planning Authorities that are a contribution receiving authority 

publish an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) at least annually and include information 

as set out in Schedule 2 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. As a 

contribution receiving authority, which receives monies or works from Section 106 (S106) 

agreements, the Council had to produce an IFS for publication. This was a new duty from 

December 2019.   

1.2 The Council’s IFS had to be published by 31 December 2021 for the period 1 April 2020 to 

31 March 2021 and contain information relating to new planning obligations entered into 

that year, any obligation triggers that have been met, as well as all unspent money from 

previous years and any monies unspent within the timescales specified within the 

agreement for the 2020/21 period.    

1.3 The S106 register is updated regularly to include the latest position on the monitoring of all 
stages of all planning obligations, and publishing the yearly IFS as required by Government. 
Members should note that the register is a ‘live’ document, where the data regularly 
changes as a result of new agreements, contributions received, and monies spent. 

 
2.0 THE INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT 
 
2.1 To inform the Infrastructure Funding Statement, the S106 obligation database is monitored 

in line with the Government’s data format. This data included details of the development 
and site, what infrastructure is to be provided (including any information on affordable 
housing delivery) and any trigger points or deadlines for contributions, when developer 
contributions are received and when contributions have been spent or transferred to other 
parties. The Council has also adopted a monitoring fee, linked to the size of development, in 
order to offset the costs associated with these burdens; these fees are incorporated in to 
new agreements. 

 
2.2 This IFS is the second public statement on infrastructure delivery via developer 

contributions by the Council and the decision was taken to showcase what developer 
contributions have helped to deliver, what they are in the process of delivering and what 
the new agreements are seeking to achieve to deliver the infrastructure needs and 
requirements arising from developments within the Borough. 

 
2.3 The IFS was published on the Council’s website in December 2021 and sent off to 

Government. The IFS is attached to the report as Appendix A. 
 
2.4 In summary, the IFS reports that 12 new developer agreements were entered into in 

2020/2021, which contained a total of £1,041,584 of monetary obligations (including 
education and affordable housing contributions) and 168 new affordable housing units 
(from 10 development sites) to be provided within the borough.   

Page 40



 
2.5 The IFS also reports: 

▪ a total 112 affordable housing units were delivered in 2020/2021; 
▪ health contributions of £32,856.00 were received towards Swineshead Doctors Surgery;  
▪ education contributions of £134,559 were received secondary education at Haven High 

Academy; 
▪ CCTV surveillance was provided for Public Open Space Land on Broadfield Lane play 

area.    
2.6 The report is displayed on the Council’s website in line with the regulations.   
 
3.0 CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 The Council was able to meet the required deadlines for producing and publishing the IFS 

and reporting to DLUHC, and remains committed to working with the local community, 
developers and stakeholders alike to ensure that planning contributions are sought, used 
appropriately and monitored to deliver the infrastructure needs and requirements arising 
from development with the borough.   

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author:  Elaine Henton, Planning Policy & S106 Officer 

elaine.henton@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Mike Gildersleeves, Assistant Director – Planning 
mike.gildersleeves@boston.gov.uk 
 

 

 

Page 41

mailto:elaine.henton@boston.gov.uk
mailto:mike.gildersleeves@boston.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPENDIX A 

Page 43



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
2 

 

 

Contents 

  Page 

 

1. Introduction 3 

 

2. 

 

Developer Contributions  3 

 

3. Summary of S106 Planning Obligations for 2020/21 

 

3 

4. Section 106 Agreements Entered into in 2020/21* 

 

4 

 

5. 

 

Affordable Housing 5 

6. 

 

Education 7 

7. 

 

Health 8 

8. 

 

Highways 9 

9. 

 

Open Space 9 

10. 

 

11. 

Other Obligations 

 

Conclusion 

 

10 

 

10 

 

 

*Appendix A – List of all Legal Agreements entered into 

in 2020/21 

11 

 

  

Page 44



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
3 

1. Introduction 

 
1.1 Welcome to Boston Borough Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) 

for 2020/21.  The IFS is an annual report required to be published on the 
Council’s website each year and provides a summary of the financial and non-
financial developer contributions relating to Section 106 legal agreements 
within the Borough for a given financial year.   

 
1.2 As Boston Borough Council does not have a CIL, this statement is purely to 

report on the S106 planning obligations. This is the Council’s second IFS and 
complies with the requirement to cover the financial year 2020/21 (1 April 2020 
to 31 March 2021).  
 

1.3 Section 4 of this Statement provides a brief overview of the S106 obligations, 
which have been entered into during the financial year.  Sections 5 to 10 provide 
a breakdown of the key areas where funding or infrastructure has been 
secured, namely for affordable housing, open space, education, highways, 
health and miscellaneous/other.  These sections also detail, where applicable, 
the different stages of the S106 process from securing the monies through to 
expenditure, largely based on the categories identified in the CIL Regulations 
2019.  It will include payments received for historic agreements, where triggers 
for obligations have been met. 

 
 

2.0 Developer Contributions 
 
2.1 Planning Obligations (also known as S106 Agreements) are legal agreements 

which can be attached to a planning permission to mitigate the impact of an 
otherwise unacceptable development to make it acceptable in planning terms. 

 
2.2  Obligations can only be sought where they are directly related to the 

development, fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
development, and necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms.  

 
2.3  S106 contributions can either be provided on-site, for example through the 

provision of affordable housing, or off-site in the form of financial payments. 
 
2.4 For a more detailed explanation of S106 developer contributions, please refer 

to Section 2 of the 2019/20 IFS on the Council’s website. 
 
 
3. Summary of S106 Planning Obligations for 2020/21 
 
3.1 The total number of legal agreements entered into or provided to the council 

under s106 in 2020/21 was 12. 
 
3.2  The total amount of money under any planning obligations which were entered 

into during the financial year 2020/21 is £1,041,584. 

Page 45



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
4 

 
3.3 The total amount of money under any planning obligations which was received 

during the financial year 2020/21 (including monies received by Lincolnshire 
County Council (LCC) as the local education authority) is £197,155.00. 

 
3.4 The total amount of money spent under any planning obligations during the 

financial year 2020/21 is £4,000. 
 
3.5  The total amount of money held at the end of the financial year 2020/21 under 

any planning obligations to be allocated or spent (including monies held by 
Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) (as the Local Education Authority) is 
£489,310.71. 

 
3.6 The non-monetary planning obligation contributions which were entered into 

during this financial year were for Affordable Housing and Open Space.  The 
total number of affordable housing units from these agreements which will be 
provided within the borough is 168. 

 
3.7 The CIL Regulations require the amount of money (received under planning 

obligations) and spent on repaying money borrowed to be reported. In the case 
of Boston Borough Council this was nil. 

 
4. Section 106 Agreements Entered into in 2020/21: 
 
4.1 Of the 12 legal agreements signed in 2020/21 (including Deeds of Variations to 

existing S106 agreements), notable development sites include:  
 

 
Planning 
Application 
 

 
Development Site 
 

 
Obligations 
 

 
B/20/0293 

 
Land at 31-33, London Road, Kirton, 
Boston, PE20 1JA 

 

 Affordable Housing 
 

 
B/20/0445 

 
Land at 70-74 Norfolk Street, Boston, 
PE21 9HQ 

 

 Affordable Housing 

 
B/17/0515 

 
Land to the west of Stephenson Close, 
Boston, PE21 7SY 
 

 

 Affordable Housing 

 Education 

 Health 

 Highways (Travel Plan) 
 
B/18/0528 

 
Land adjacent and to the south of 
Hawthorn Tree School on the east side 
of Toot Lane, Boston, PE21 0PT 
 

 

 Affordable Housing 
 

 
For a Full List of the signed Legal Agreements in 2020/21 see Appendix A 
 

 
S106 agreements and other relevant documentation from each planning 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at: 

Page 46



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
5 

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/  Search under the 
planning application reference number. 

 

5. Affordable Housing 

5.1 Policy 18 of the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (SELLP) sets out the need 
and delivery for affordable housing within the borough. 

5.2 In 2020/21 there were 10 new legal agreements signed which will deliver 168 
new affordable housing units within the borough: 

 
Planning 
Application 
 

 
Development Site 
 

 
Affordable 
Housing Units 
 

 
B/20/0445 

 
Land at 70-74 Norfolk Street, Boston, PE21 9HQ 

 
 47 

 
B/20/0293 

 
Land at 31-33, London Road, Kirton, Boston, 
PE20 1JA 

 
 41 

 
B/17/0515 

 
Land to the west of Stephenson Close, Boston, 
PE21 7SY 

 
 17 

 
B/19/0288 & 
B/20/0386 

 
Land off Grayling Way, Boston, Lincs, PE21 8FS 
 

 
 24 

 
B/15/0391 

 
Mani Firs, London Road, Kirton, Boston, 
Lincolnshire, PE20 1JE 
 

 
 21 

B/15/0100 Former De Montfort Campus, Mill Road, Boston, 
Lincolnshire, PE21 0HF 
 

   6 
  

B/12/0171 Land to the north of Boston West Primary School, 
west of The Peter Paine Sports Centre and south 
of The North Forty Foot Drain 

   4 

 
B/18/0399 

 
Land to the west of 90, 92 and 94 Fenside Road, 
Boston 
 

 
   8 

  
    TOTAL: 

 
 168 
 

 
 
5.3 In 2020/21 a total of 112 affordable housing units were delivered within the 

borough, across 11 development sites, including The Quadrant, Broadfield 
Lane (Phase 4), Lincoln Lane and Swineshead Road, Wyberton. 

 

Page 47

https://www.mybostonuk.com/planning-application-search/


Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
6 

 
Former Phoenix Poultry Farm, Swineshead Road 

 
Land off 7 Lincoln Lane, Boston 

 
 
  

 
Planning 
Application 
 

 
Development Site 
 

 
Affordable Housing 
Delivered 
 

   
B/19/0288 Land off Grayling Way, Boston, Lincs, PE21 

8FS 
 

26 Units 

B/19/0169 Former Phoenix Poultry Farm, Swineshead 
Road, Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7JG 
 

25 Units 

B/19/0002 Land at 7 Lincoln Lane, Boston, Lincs 18 Units 
 

 
B/14/0165 

 
Land either side of the A16, south of Tytton 
Lane East, Boston (Quadrant) 

 
15 Units 

 
B/15/0391 

 
Land off London Road, Kirton 

 
  9 Units 
 

B/15/0100 Former De Montfort Campus, Mill Road, 
Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 0HF 

  6 Units 

 
B/16/0052 

 
Land off Station Road, Swineshead, Boston, 
Lincolnshire, PE20 3NX 

 
  
 5 Units 
 

 
B/16/0409 

 
Land at Station Road, Sutterton, Boston, 
Lincolnshire, PE20 2JH 

 
  4 Units 

 
B/17/0317 

 
Land off Wyberton Low Road, Wyberton, 
Boston, PE21 7SF 

 
  2 Units 

 
 
B/18/0395 

 
Land off Puritan Way, Boston, Lincolnshire, 
PE21 8NW 

 
 
  2 Units 

   
  

    TOTAL: 
 
112 Units 
 

 

5.4 A commuted sum of £455,000.00 was entered into from a legal agreement for 
land adjacent to the south of Hawthorn Tree School on the east side of Toot 

Page 48



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
7 

Lane, Boston (B/18/0528) which, once received will be allocated and spent on 
the future provision of affordable housing within the borough of Boston. 

 
 
6. Education 
 

6.1 Appendix 8: Developer Contributions for Education Facilities of the SELLP 
provides details of how education contributions are calculated and sought to 
provide the additional capacity required as identified within the South East 
Lincolnshire Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2016 (IDP). 

 
6.2 In 2020/21 a total of £518,844.00 of education contributions was entered into 

from planning application B/17/0515 - Land to the west of Stephenson Close, 
Boston, which will be used towards the provision of primary, secondary and 
sixth form education within the borough. 

 
6.3 In 2020/21 £134,559 was received in education contributions which will be used 

towards secondary education at Haven High Academy. 
 

 
Haven High Academy 

 

6.4 As at 31 March 2021, LCC retained a total of £377,359.84 in respect of planning 
obligations which remains unallocated at present for development sites within 
the borough, including:   

 

 Land off Whitebridges, St Thomas Drive, Boston 

 Land off Station Road, Swineshead 

 Land off Puritan Way, Boston   

 Land at Phoenix Poultry Farm, Swineshead Road, Wyberton Fen 
  
 
6.5  Some S106 agreements signed in previous years which include planning 

obligations for education yet to be triggered include: 
 
 

Page 49



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
8 

 
Planning 
Application 
 

 
Development Site 
 

 
Education Contribution 
 

 
B/14/0165 

 
Land either side of the A16, south of 
Tytton Lane East, Boston (Quadrant) 

 
£500,000.00 

   
B/16/0436 Land east of Lindis Road (inc former 

Shooters Yard), Fishtoft 
 

£150,000.00 
 

B/17/0244 Woods Nurseries Site, Woods Nurseries, 
High Street, Swineshead 
 

£101,948.00 
 

B/16/0409 Land at Station Road, Sutterton 
 

£  33,829.00 

  
     

 
 

LCC work with the Council to notify us when monies for planning obligations for 
education are secured, received, allocated, spent and returned. 

 
 
7. Health 

7.1 SELLP Policies 5, 6 and 32 recognise the need to help make provision for 
health care facilities to contribute to the health and wellbeing of the residents 
and meet local needs which can be sought from relevant new residential 
developments. 

 
7.2 One new S106 agreement was signed in 2020/21 which contained a planning 

obligation for health.  This was for £37,740.00 relating to planning permission 
B/17/0515 - Land to the west of Stephenson Close, Boston, which will provide 
specific improvements to Swineshead Doctors Surgery.   

 
7.3 Health Contribution Monies received in 2020/21 totalled £32,856.00 which will 

be spent on Swineshead Doctors Surgery.  
 

 
Swineshead Doctors Surgery 

 
7.4 Development sites which have commenced or are already under construction 

within the borough, which include planning obligations for health, the obligations 
for which were yet to be triggered are: 

Page 50



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
9 

 
 
Planning 
Application 
 

 
Development Site 
 

 
Health Contribution 
 

 
B/14/0165 

 
Land either side of the A16, south of 
Tytton Lane East, Boston (Quadrant) 

 
£200,000.00 

   
B/16/0436 Land east of Lindis Road (inc former 

Shooters Yard), Fishtoft, Boston 
 

£  30,000.00 
 

  
     

 
 

 
 
8. Highways 
 
8.1 The Boston Distributor Road delivery, which is a long term highway 

development programme, which in the main is led and facilitated by 
development opportunities (Policy 34 of the SELLP) and has been split into 3 
phases.  

 
8.2 Works have been ongoing throughout 2020/21 on Phase 1, which links the A16 

to London Road through a development known as Q1, a mixed use 
development which is being delivered under a planning obligation for highways, 
for which the S106 agreement was signed in 2015 (B/14/0165).  It is anticipated 
that the new link road will be opening in early 2022. 

 

 

 

 
New Link Road from London Road  New Link Road through to London 

Road from A16 

 
 
 
9. Open Space 
 
9.1 In 2020/21, two new legal agreements required the need for open space 

planning obligations, which will be delivered through Open Space Management 
Schemes (OSMS).  The owners of these sites will lay out, maintain and manage 
these sites in accordance with the OSMS. 

 

Page 51



Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
10 

9.2 In this financial year, Council spent £4,000 of £56,000 remaining from planning 
obligation (B/13/0037) which is for the provision of play equipment and 
maintenance at Broadfield Lane play area and has allocated the remaining 
£52,000 to be spent on this site over the next 13 years. 

 
 
10. Other Obligations  
 
10.1 In 2020/21, a planning obligation was met 

which was for the installation of CCTV 
surveillance of the Public Open Space Land 
on Broadfield Lane play area.   
 
This was from planning permission 
B/13/0037, a development at Broadfield 
Lane to provide 48 affordable homes 
(Phase 1). 

 
 
 
11. Conclusion 
 
11.1 Boston Borough Council remains committed to working with the local 

community, developers and other stakeholders to ensure that planning 
contributions are sought and used appropriately, as detailed within the SELLP, 
to deliver the infrastructure needs and requirements arising from development, 
such as new affordable housing, health, education and highways.  

 
11.2 If you have any queries or comments about this statement, please do not 

hesitate to contact us via email planning@boston.gov.uk or phone 01205 
314385.  

  

Page 52

mailto:planning@boston.gov.uk


Infrastructure Funding Statement 2020/21 

 

 
11 

 

Appendix A 

List of All Legal Agreements Signed in 2020/21 

Planning 
Application No 

Agreement 
Type * 

Site Address Date 
Signed 

Obligations 

B/18/0399 S106 Land to the west of 90, 92 and 94 
Fenside Road, Boston 
 

10/06/2020  Affordable Housing 

 Open Space 

B/12/0171 UU Land to the north of Boston West 
Primary School, west of The Peter 
Paine Sports Centre and south of 
The North Forty Foot Drain 
 

25/06/2020  Affordable Housing 

B/15/0100 UU Former De Montfort Campus, Mill 
Road, Boston, Lincolnshire, PE21 
0HF 
 

02/07/2020  Affordable Housing 

B/18/0528 UU Land adjacent and to the south of 
Hawthorn Tree School on the east 
side of Toot Lane, Boston, PE21 0PT 
 

22/07/2020  Affordable Housing 

 Open Space 

B/19/0060 UU Viking Supermarket,  First Floor 46-
56 West Street, Boston, PE21 8QH 
 

29/07/2020  Other 

B/15/0391 UU Mani Firs, London Road, Kirton, 
Boston, Lincolnshire, PE20 1JE 
 

18/09/2020  Affordable Housing 

B/19/0520 UU Boston West Golf Centre, Langrick 
Road, Hubberts Bridge, Boston, 
Lincolnshire, PE20 3SG 
 

21/09/2020  Highways (Transport) 

B/19/0288 & 
B/20/0386 

UU Land off Grayling Way, Bost 
on, Lincs, PE21 8FS 
 

04/11/2020  Affordable Housing 

B/17/0515 S106 Land to the west of Stephenson 
Close, Boston, PE21 7SY 
 

01/12/2020  Affordable Housing 

 Education 

 Health 
 Highways (Travel Plan) 

 
B/20/0293 UU Land at 31-33, London Road, Kirton, 

Boston, PE20 1JA 
17/12/2020  Affordable Housing 

     
B/20/0445 UU Land at 70-74 Norfolk Street, Boston, 

PE21 9HQ 
 

25/02/2021  Affordable Housing 

B/16/0380 DoV Land north of Middlegate Road 
(west), Frampton, Boston, PE20 1BX 

31/03/2021  Affordable Housing 

 Education 
 
 

    

 

* Agreement Type Definitions S106  Section 106 Agreement 
 UU Unilateral Undertaking 

 DoV Deed of Variation 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 PLANNING APPLICATION B/21/0039
	Planning Application
	Appendix. Summary.
	Additional Information

	2 ADOPTION OF LOCAL LIST
	Appendix A.  Draft Selection Criteria
	Appendix B. Draft Selection Criterai Guidance

	3 INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT
	Appendix A.


